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GMR WARORA ENERGY LIMITED 
Registered Office: 701/704, 7th Floor, Naman Centre, A-Wing,  

BKC (Bandra Kurla Complex), Bandra Mumbai Maharashtra 400051  

(CIN: U40100MH2005PLC155140; T: 022- 42028000;  

website: www.gmrpui.com & www.gmrgroup.in) 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Eighteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company 

will be held on Friday, September 29, 2023 at 10:30 AM through Video Conferencing 

(“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following businesses: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Annual Financial Statements comprising of 

the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow 

Statement for the year ended on that date together with the notes and schedules 

thereto for the year ended March 31, 2023, and the reports of the Board of Directors 

and Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. S. Rajagopal (DIN: 00022609), who retires by 

rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

3. To appoint a director in place of Dr. Kavitha Gudapati (DIN: 02506004), who retires by 

rotation and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

4. RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION OF THE COST AUDITOR 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time 

being in force), M/s Narasimha Murthy & Co., Cost Accountants having firm 

registration no.000042, appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as Cost 

Auditors, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company, for the financial 

year 2023-24, be paid a remuneration of Rs.1,00,000/-(Rupees One Lakh ) plus out 

of pocket expenses to be reimbursed on actual basis and other applicable taxes. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby 

severally authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper 

or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 

5. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. ASHIS BASU (DIN 01872233), AS WHOLE-TIME 

DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY AND PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following 

resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 196, 197, 198 and all 

other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 

being in force) read with Schedule V of the Act and subject to such other approvals 

as may be required in this regard, the consent of the members be and is hereby 

accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Ashis Basu, as Whole-time Director  

(DIN 01872233), of the Company with effect from April 15, 2024, for a further 

http://www.gmrpui.com/
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period of three years and payment of remuneration as set out in the explanatory 

statement attached to this notice. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT remuneration paid to Mr. Ashis Basu during the 

financial year 2022-23 be and is hereby approved. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter 

referred to as “the Board” which term shall also be deemed to include the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee or any other sub-committee constituted 

by the Board) be and is hereby authorized to revise and / or re-fix the said 

remuneration and/ or other perquisites, benefits and amenities provided that so 

revised/ re-fixed remuneration and/or other perquisites etc. within the remuneration 

as approved and in compliance with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything contained herein above, in 

case of adequate profits in any year or in the event of absence or inadequacy of 

profits, the aforesaid remuneration by be paid as minimum remuneration subject to 

the provisions of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any 

Committee thereof be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters 

and things as may be necessary, expedient or desirable and to settle any question or 

doubt that may arise in relation thereto, in order to give effect to the foregoing 

resolutions.”  

 

6. APPROVAL OF REMUNERATION OF MR. SANJAY NARAYAN BARDE, 

WHOLETIME DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following 

resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 197 198 and all other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 

being in force) read with Schedule V of the Act and subject to such other approvals 

as may be required in this regard, the consent of the members be and is hereby 

accorded for the payment of remuneration of Mr. Sanjay Narayan Barde, as Whole-

time Director of the Company as set out in the explanatory statement attached to 

this notice. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT remuneration paid to Mr. Sanjay Narayan Barde during 

the financial year 2022-23 be and is hereby approved. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter 

referred to as “the Board” which term shall also be deemed to include the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee or any other sub-committee constituted 

by the Board) be and is hereby authorized to revise and / or re-fix the said 

remuneration and/ or other perquisites, benefits and amenities provided that so 

revised/ re-fixed remuneration and/or other perquisites etc. within the remuneration 

as approved and in compliance with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything contained herein above, in 

case of adequate profits in any year or in the event of absence or inadequacy of 

profits, the aforesaid remuneration by be paid as minimum remuneration subject to 

the provisions of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any 

Committee thereof be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters 

and things as may be necessary, expedient or desirable and to settle any question or 

doubt that may arise in relation thereto, in order to give effect to the foregoing 

resolutions.”  

 

7. APPOINTMENT OF MS. SUMAN NARESH SABNANI (DIN: 10223343) AS A 

NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution, as an Ordinary Resolution. 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the 

Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and 

upon the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the 

Board of Directors of the Company, Ms. Suman Naresh Sabnani (DIN: 10223343), 

who was appointed as an Additional Director in the category of independent director 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from 

September 05, 2023 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General 

Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under 

Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member proposing her candidature 

for the office of Director, and who has submitted a declaration that she meets the 

criteria for independence as provided in section 149(6) of the Act and be and is 

hereby appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company not liable 

to retire by rotation, for a term of five consecutive years commencing from 

September 05, 2023 upto September 04, 2028. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including the 

committee thereof) and / or Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby 

authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered 

necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 

By Order of the Board for GMR Warora Energy Limited 

 

 

Sanjay Kumar Babu 
Company Secretary 

        M.No. FCS 8649 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: September 05, 2023 
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NOTES: 

 

1. In view of COVID 19 pandemic, social distance is a norm to be followed, the 

Government of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, allowed conducting Annual 

General Meeting through Video Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means 

(OAVM) and dispensed personal present of the Members at the Meeting. Accordingly, 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) issued Circular No 14/2020 dated 08th April, 

2020 Circular No 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020 Circular No 20/2020 dated 05th 

May, 2020, Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021, Circular No. 2/2022 

dated 5th May, 2022 and Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28th December 2022 

prescribing the procedures and manner of conducting the Annual General Meeting 

through VC/OAVM. In terms of said Circulars, the 18th Annual General Meeting of 

the Members be held through Video Conferencing. 

 

2. The Meeting shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the 

Company situated at 701/704, 7th Floor, Naman Centre, A-Wing, BKC (Bandra Kurla 

Complex), Bandra Mumbai Maharashtra 400051. 

 

3. Since, the AGM is being conducted through video conferencing, there is no provision 

for appointment of proxies. Accordingly, appointment of proxies by the Members will 

not be available. 

 

4. Banks / Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, 

NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or 

Governing Body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to 

attend the AGM through VC on its behalf and to vote. 

 

5. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, Notice of the AGM is being sent only 

through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with 

the Company/ Depositories. 

 

6. Members attending the AGM through Video Conferencing shall be counted for the 

purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

 

7. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement are 

open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office as well as Corporate 

Office of the Company on all working days, except Saturdays, during business hours 

up to the date of the Meeting. 

 

8. The Statement setting out the material facts in respect of the special businesses 

pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, is annexed to this Notice as 

Annexure I. 

 

9. Brief details of the Directors proposed to be re-appointed as required pursuant to the 

Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meetings, is annexed to this Notice as  

Annexure II. 

 

10. Since the AGM will be held through Video Conferencing, the Route Map is not 

annexed in this Notice. 

 

11. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding 

maintained under section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Contracts 

or arrangements in which Directors are interested under section 189 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and all other documents referred to in the Notice will be 

available for inspection in electronic mode. Members can inspect the same by 

sending an email to: energy-secretarial@gmrgroup.in. 
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12. The details and process and manner for participating in the AGM through Video 

Conferencing are explained herein below: 

a) Meeting would be conducted by using Zoom application which is one of the mode 

of conducting through Video Conferencing. 

b) The Login Id and Password will be shared to the Members on their respective 

email ids as registered with the Company. 

c) Members can participate in AGM through smart phone/laptop, however for 

better experience and smooth participation it is advisable to join the Meeting 

through Laptops. 

d) Further Members will be required to allow camera and microphone permission 

and it is better to use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during 

the Meeting. 

e) For those shareholders who need assistance with using the technology before or 

during the meeting or in case of any query, may call to the Mr. Sanjay Babu, 

Company Secretary, Mobile No. 9818124122 or can send a mail to 

Sanjay.Babu@gmrgroup.in or energy-secretarial@gmrgroup.in. 

mailto:Sanjay.Babu@gmrgroup.in
mailto:energy-secretarial@gmrgroup.in
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ANNEXURE I 

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

Item No.4: 

 

The Board on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, had approved the 

appointment and remuneration of M/s. Narasimha Murthy & Co., Cost Accountants 

having firm registration no.000042 to conduct the audit of the cost records of the 

Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 at remuneration as detailed in 

the resolution. 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Act read with the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost 

Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, consent 

of the members is being sought for ratification of the remuneration payable to Cost 

Auditors for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice, 

for approval by the members. 

 

None of the other Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 

relatives is in any way, concerned or interested financially or otherwise, in these 

resolutions. 

    

Item No.5: 

 

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the 

Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 05, 2023 approved the  

re-appointment of Mr. Ashis Basu as a Whole-time Director w.e.f. April 15, 2024 for 

a term of three years till April 14, 2027 and payment of remuneration as follows: 

 

 Gross Salary: Rs.2.55 Crore per annum effective from April 01, 2023 which 

includes variable pay, ex-gratia bonus and other allowances & perquisites with 

the authority to the HR for annual increment as per HR Policy of the Company.  

 In addition to above, he shall be eligible for following benefits as per HR 

policy/rules of the Company in force; 

i) Special incentive and/or Performance Bonus; 

ii) Contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund to the 

extent these either singly or put together are not taxable under the Income 

Tax Act, 1961; 

iii) Gratuity payable not exceeding half month’s salary for each completed 

year of service or as per the applicable law in force; and 

iv) Encashment of leave as per Company’s rules, at the end of tenure. 

 The different components of remuneration including Salary, HR allowance, 

transport allowance, leave travel allowance, medical reimbursement and 

retirement benefits etc., be finalized as per the Company’s policy. 

 The valuation of perquisites shall be as per the provisions of the Income Tax 

Act and the break-up of overall remuneration shall be as per the Company 

Rules.  

 Reimbursement of Expenses incurred for telephone expense, travelling, 

boarding and lodging; provisions of car(s) in course of the official purposes 

shall be reimbursed on actuals and not to considered as perquisites. 

 

In view of inadequacy of profit during FY 2022-23, calculated as per section 198 of 
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the Companies Act, 2013, the payment of managerial remuneration will have to be in 

accordance with Schedule V of the Act, based on the effective capital of the 

Company. Further, the limits specified as per the effective capital can be increased if 

the same is approved by the shareholders of the Company by way of a special 

resolution.  

  

The particulars of the information, pursuant to the provisions of Schedule V, Part II, 

Section II, clause (A) of the Act are annexed hereto. 

 

Considering his expertise and vast experience in the industry, the Board is of the 

view that Mr. Ashis Basu possesses appropriate skills, experience and knowledge and 

therefore his re-appointment as Whole-time Director is desirable and would be 

beneficial to the Company and recommends the re-appointment of Mr. Basu for three 

years and approval for remuneration paid during the financial year 2022-23 as 

mentioned in statement under schedule V and payment of remuneration proposed as 

aforesaid to the shareholders by way of a special resolution as set out in item No. 5 

of the Notice.  

 

Except Mr. Ashis Basu, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and 

their relatives is in any way concerned or interested in the above resolution. 

 

Item No. 6: 

 

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the 

Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 05, 2023 approved the  

revision in terms of remuneration of Mr. Sanjay Narayan Barde as a whole-time 

director of the Company, as below:  

 

 Gross Salary: Rs3.13 Crore per annum effective from April 01, 2023 which 

includes variable pay, ex-gratia bonus and other allowances & perquisites with 

the authority to the HR for annual increment as per HR Policy of the Company.  

 In addition to above, he shall be eligible for following benefits as per HR 

policy/rules of the Company in force; 

i. Special incentive and/or Performance Bonus; 

ii. Contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund 

to the extent these either singly or put together are not taxable 

under the Income Tax Act, 1961; 

iii. Gratuity payable not exceeding half month’s salary for each 

completed year of service or as per the applicable law in force; and 

iv. Encashment of leave as per Company’s rules, at the end of tenure. 

 The different components of remuneration including Salary, HR allowance, 

transport allowance, leave travel allowance, medical reimbursement and 

retirement benefits etc., be finalized as per the Company’s policy. 

 The valuation of perquisites shall be as per the provisions of the Income Tax 

Act and the break-up of overall remuneration shall be as per the Company 

Rules.  

 Reimbursement of Expenses incurred for telephone expense, travelling, 

boarding and lodging; provisions of car(s) in course of the official purposes 

shall be reimbursed on actuals and not to considered as perquisites. 

 

In view of inadequacy of profit during FY 2022-23, calculated as per section 198 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, the payment of managerial remuneration will have to be in 

accordance with Schedule V of the Act, based on the effective capital of the Company. 

Further, the limits specified as per the effective capital can be increased if the same is 

approved by the shareholders of the Company by way of a special resolution. 
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The particulars of the information, pursuant to the provisions of Schedule V, Part II, 

Section II, clause (A) of the Act are annexed hereto. 

 

Considering his expertise and vast experience in the industry, the Board is of the view 

that Mr. Barde possesses appropriate skills, experience and knowledge and 

recommends to the shareholders’ for their approval for remuneration paid during the 

financial year 2022-23 as mentioned in statement under schedule V and payment of 

remuneration proposed as aforesaid to the shareholders by way of a special resolution 

as set out in item No. 6 of the Notice.  

 

Except Mr. Sanjay Narayan Barde, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

(KMP) and their relatives is in any way concerned or interested in the above 

resolution. 

 

Item No.7:  

 

In terms of provision of sub regulation (1) of regulation 24 of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, at least one independent director on the board of directors of the 

listed entity shall be a director on the board of directors of an unlisted material 

subsidiary, whether incorporated in India or not. Also, for the purposes of this 

provision, the term “material subsidiary” shall mean a subsidiary, whose income or 

net worth exceeds twenty percent of the consolidated income or net worth 

respectively, of the listed entity and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding 

accounting year. 

 

The Company is a subsidiary of GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited (GPUIL), a 

Company listed on the NSE and BSE. Since the income of the Company exceeded 

20% of the consolidated income of GPUIL, the Company has become a material 

subsidiary of GPUIL for the purpose or regulation 24(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015, and accordingly, one independent director of GPUIL is required to be appointed 

on the board of directors of the Company. 

 

In view of the above and upon recommendation of nomination and remuneration 

committee, the Board of Directors of the Company, had appointed Ms. Suman Naresh 

Sabnani, who is Independent Director in listed holding company(GPUIL), as an 

Additional Director of your Company, in the category of independent director in terms 

of Section 149 and 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, with effect from September 05, 

2023, to hold office upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. It is now 

proposed to appoint Ms. Suman Naresh Sabnani (DIN: 10223343) as a Non-

Executive, Independent Director of the Company whose office shall not be liable to 

retire by rotation for a term of five consecutive years commencing from September 

05, 2023 upto September 04, 2028. 

  

The Company has duly received from him (i) consent in writing to act as director in 

Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of 

Directors) Rules, 2014 (ii) intimation in Form DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 14 of the 

Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that 

he is not disqualified under sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and (iii) declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in 

Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Company has also received a notice in writing from a Member as required under 

Section 160 of the Act, proposing his candidature. Further, the Nomination & 
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remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors had also recommended the 

appointment of Ms. Sabnani as Director of the Company.  

 

The details of the appointee in terms of Secretarial Standard 2 is given in Annexure I 

as annexed to this Notice. 

 

A copy each of the disclosures received from Ms. Sabnani as aforesaid, notice under 

section 160 of the Act are available for inspection, without any fee, by the members 

at the Company’s registered office / Corporate Office during business hours on 

working days,  

 

Except, Ms. Suman Naresh Sabnani, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel or their relatives are concerned or interested in the aforesaid resolution. 

 

By Order of the Board for GMR Warora Energy Limited 
 
 

Sanjay Kumar Babu 
Company Secretary 

M.No. FCS 8649 
Place: New Delhi  
Date: September 05, 2023 
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Statement containing information to the shareholders as required by Schedule – 

V of the Companies Act, 2013: 

 

I. General Information: 

 

1) Nature of Industry 

 

GMR Warora Energy Limited has a 2x300 MW coal based thermal power plant at 

Warora; Dist. Chandrapur, Maharashtra.   

  

2) Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production 

 

Date of commencement of commercial production of unit I is 19.03.2013 and unit 

II 30.09.2013. 

 

3) In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities 

as per project approved by financial institutions appearing in the 

prospectus: -N.A 

 

4) Financial Performance based on given indicators:  

  (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars 

FY  FY  FY  

2020-21 

(Actual) 

2021-22 

(Actual) 

2022-23 

(Actual) 

Total Revenue  

(incl. other income) 14833.52 

 

14082.36 

 

16980.79 

Expenditure 

(incl. interest and 

depreciation) 15673.68 

 

14764.70 

 

16158.85 

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 

(PBT) (840.16) 

(682.34) 821.94 

Exceptional items   856.80 

Profit/(Loss) after Tax (PAT) (633.28) (486.95) 1678.74 

  

 (5) Foreign investments or collaborations, if any 

 

NIL 

 

II. Information about the appointee: 

 

1. Background details, Job Profile and his suitability 

 

Mr. Ashis Basu: 

 

Mr. Ashis Basu has been associated with the GMR Group since December 2001. He holds 

a Bachelors’ degree in Commerce from St. Xavier’s College, Kolkata and is also a 

qualified Chartered Accountant. He has rich experience in power sector, Commercial and 

Contracts. Prior to joining our group, he worked with RPG-RR Power Engineering Limited 

as a Chief Manager - Finance for a period of 5 years. He has in the past also worked with 

other subsidiaries of CESC Limited for development of power project and coal mining 

project. Currently, he is responsible for the corporate functions of Energy sector including 

legal, corporate secretarial, commercial contracts & procurement, business development 
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and development of business portfolio. 

 
Mr. Sanjay Narayan Barde: 

 

Mr. Sanjay Narayan Barde, is a mechanical engineer from BMS College of Engineering, 

Bengaluru in 1978. He has been associated in the Group since July 2004. He has over 41 

years of work experience in power sector in construction, commissioning and management of 

large power projects and plants. He joined National Thermal Power Corporation as an 

Executive Trainee and worked for 18 years in various capacities at Korba and Dadri Super 

Thermal Power Stations and was handling with the Construction / Erection/ Commissioning 

related activities. He was posted in CEGB United Kingdom for a year during this period for 

Training in various systems which were under implementation at NTPC. In 1996 he joined 

BSES as Chief Engineer at Dahanu. He worked up to the position of GM and station in charge 

of Dahanu Thermal Power Station. He has an experience of over thirty-five years in Power 

Generation Field and has been associates with GMR Group since July 2004. Mr. Barde is a 

Director on various companies of GMR group. The areas of experience of Mr. Barde include 

plant development, operations and general management. 

 

2. Past Remuneration                     Rs. in millions 

Name Mr. Ashis Basu Mr. Sanjay Narayan 

Barde 

Remuneration  

(including PF and other exempted 

perquisites and allowance) 

29.38 33.87 

 

3. Recognition or Awards 

 

Nil 

 

4. Remuneration proposed 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company, subject to the approval of the Shareholders of 

the Company, has recommended the re-appointment & remuneration of Mr. Ashis Basu 

the Whole-time Director of the Company and revision in terms of remuneration of  

Mr. Sanjay Narayan Barde as per the details mentioned in the resolution and explanatory 

statements for the period upto their respective tenures. 

 

5. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the 

Company, profile of the position and person. 

 

The payment of remuneration to managerial personnel such as Whole-time Director is 

fixed on the basis of the relative activity and business complexities prevailing in each 

industry. The remuneration is fixed after making an assessment through market sources 

in the power sector industry. 

 

Compensation structure in leading companies has been studied. As a Whole-time Director 

of the Company, they have many key goals to be achieved including the following: 

 

1. Smooth conduct of operations; 

2. Ensuring sustained external charter business; 

3. Meeting the internal requirements of group companies. 
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6. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company or relationship 

with the Managerial Personnel, if any.   

 

None of the managerial personnel is a relative of Mr. Ashis Basu and Mr Sanjay Narayan 

Barde 

 

III. Other Information: 

 

(1)Reasons for loss or inadequate profits. 

 

 Linkage coal curtailment by SECL to 75% ACQ has resulted into coal shortage. 

Units were forced to shut down leading to generation loss. 

 Fuel supply agreement was curtailed due to expiry of DNH in June 2020. Portion of 

FSA was restored after start of GUVNL PPA in Oct 2021. 

 Due to COVID, there was low demand of power and merchant rates was very less 

which resulted in lower sale of untied capacity. 

 Lower PLF in H1 mainly due to low coal materialization has resulted in loss of 

capacity charges and less sales in exchange market. 

 Unable to maintain PPA compliance to 85% resulting in revenue loss. 

 

(2)Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement. 

 

 Implementation of Resolution Plan (RP) under RBI guidelines - as per terms of 

Resolution Plan, interest rate on TL/FBWC has been revised to 8.50% p.a. w.e.f. 

April 01, 2021 

 Reduction in finance cost by restructuring of term loan and working capital 

facilities. 

 100% materialization of linkage coal to reduce cost of coal. Steps taken for 

improvement of GCV. 

 Construction of dedicated freight corridor for reducing cost of transportation for 

road movement from WCL. 

 

(3) Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms 

 

 Target Coal Materialization to 100% of ACQ 

 Capacity Enhancement by 10MW by savings in auxiliary power consumption. 

 Maintaining customer availability for improving profitability and sale of untied 

capacity in exchange market. 

 Entering into new PPA at higher rate after expiry of GUVNL PPA. 

 Obtain Favorable Verdicts in Regulatory cases and realization of receivables. 

 

                   
By Order of the Board 

For GMR Warora Energy Limited  

         
 

                 Sanjay Kumar Babu 

                                                                          Company Secretary 

                                               M.No. FCS 8649  

Place: New Delhi     

Date: September 05, 2023 
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Annexure I 

 

Additional Information on Directors recommended for re-appointment/appointment as required under Secretarial Standards-2 as 

prescribed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India: 

 
Name: Dr. Kavitha Gudapati Mr. S. Rajagopal Mr. Ashis Basu Ms. Suman Naresh Sabnani  

Proposed 

designation and 

appointment 

Director liable to retire by 

rotation 

Director liable to retire by 

rotation 

Whole-time Director  

 

Independent Director  

 

DIN 02506004 00022609 01872233 10223343 

Date of birth November 14, 1974 March 10, 1940 June 02, 1962 May 09, 1971 

Age 48 years 83 years 61 years 52 years 

Qualifications Doctorate in Management, MA 

in Psychology and a Post 

Graduate diploma in basic and 

advanced counselling skills 

Masters’ degree in arts 

(Economics), law graduate, 

commerce degree and 

professional qualification from 

the Indian Institute of Bankers 

Chartered Accountant Graduate in commerce and 

Post Graduate Certificate in 

Business Management, XLRI, 

Jamshedpur. 

Experience Dr. Kavitha Gudapati is an 

Organizational Psychologist, 

facilitator, family business 

advisor and a certified 

leadership Coach. 

She has a Doctorate in 

Management, specializing in 

Organizational Behaviour, an 

MA in Psychology and a Post 

Graduate diploma in basic and 

advanced counselling skills. 

She is a Certified Coach 

recognized by the ICF 

(International Coach 

Federation), also has a ACC 

Mr. S. Rajagopal holds a 

masters’ degree in arts 

(Economics) from Gujarat 

University and is a law 

graduate from Gujarat 

University. Additionally, he also 

holds commerce degree from 

Gujarat University and 

professional qualification from 

the Indian Institute of Bankers. 

He has been on the boards of 

several corporate institutions 

and development funds in India 

and overseas. He has more 

than 37 years of experience in 

the field of banking industry. 

Mr. Ashis Basu has been 

associated with the GMR 

Group since December 2001. 

He holds a Bachelors’ degree 

in Commerce from St. Xavier’s 

College, Kolkata and is also a 

qualified Chartered 

Accountant. He has rich 

experience in power sector, 

Commercial and Contracts. 

Prior to joining our group, he 

worked with RPG-RR Power 

Engineering Limited as a Chief 

Manager - Finance for a period 

of 5 years. He has in the past 

also worked with other 

Ms. Suman Naresh Sabnani is 

a Graduate in commerce from 

Mumbai University and holds 

Post Graduate Certificate in 

Business Management, XLRI, 

Jamshedpur. Ms. Suman is 

having managerial experience 

of over 30 years and has held 

various senior positions with 

HSBC Bank, India and her last 

stint with the Bank was a 

Global role reporting to HSBC, 

UK. During her stint, she dealt 

the Regional Third-Party Risk 

Officers across Asia Pacific, 

UK, Europe, North America, to 
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– Erickson coach certification. 

She has been trained by Dr. 

Marshall Goldsmith on his 

approach towards  executive 

coaching. She has ICF 

Approved Certificate 

Program in “Appreciative 

Coaching” by Fielding 

Graduate University. She has 

also undergone Basic Human 

processes lab and Advanced 

Human processes lab under 

ISABS. She has undergone 

family business Executive 

Education Programs offered 

by ISB – Indian School of 

Business, Hyderabad. 

She has over seventeen years 

of experience covering a wide 

range of industries and 

projects. She has consulted 

and trained with several 

organizations such as Bharath 

Dynamics Limited, VOLVO, 

DRDL, Deloitte, GE- Money, 

PWC, GMR, Dr. Reddy’s, 

Satyam Computers, Airtel, 

BSNL, BAAN, Intelle Group, 

BSNL, Navayuga Infotech, 

Cyberabad Police Neospark 

etc. 

 

Dr. Kavitha Gudapati is also 

the Director on the Board of 

several other GMR group 

He has been the Chairman and 

Managing Director of Indian 

Bank, Chairman and Managing 

Director of Bank of India and 

Chairman of the Banking 

 Service Recruitment 

Board. He is also an Advocate 

with specialization in company 

matters. He is also closely 

associated with Academics. As 

the Chairman of Committee of 

Economists of Indian Banks’ 

Association, he conducted 

studies on Tyre, Sugar, 

Granite, Electronics and Film 

Industry among others. 

subsidiaries of CESC Limited 

for development of power 

project and coal mining 

project. 

ensure all that Third Party 

Risks raised in their Areas are 

completely and accurately 

addressed. She also managed 

the third-party Global Risk 

Map, Emerging Risk Return 

and third-party Opinion Paper 

for Global Senior Management 

and review of Supplier 

Management chain to ensure 

alignment to the Bank’s Policy 

and Procedures. 

 

Ms. Sabnani has received 

several awards and recognition 

during her professional 

journey. She was nominated 

for Global Circle of Excellence 

2020, HSBC Global Wealth and 

Personal Banking, Dynamo 

Award, Head of Retail Banking 

& Wealth Management for 

exemplary customer service 

and was ranked as No.1 

Customer Service Manager 

India, among many others. 
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Companies. 

Terms and 
Conditions: 

Non-Executive Director liable 

to retire by rotation. 

Non-Executive Director liable to 

retire by rotation. 

Whole-time Director  

liable to retire by rotation 

Independent Director not liable 

to retire by rotation. 

Details of 

remuneration 

sought to be paid: 

Except sitting fee, no other 

remuneration is proposed to 

be paid 

Except sitting fee, no other 

remuneration is proposed to be 

paid 

As per shareholders’ 

resolution set out in notice of 

AGM 

Except sitting fee, no other 

remuneration is proposed to be 

paid 

Date of first 

appointment on 

the Board 

February 20, 2021 March 27, 2020 April 15, 2015  September 05, 2023 

Shareholding in the 

Company: 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Relationship with 

Other Directors, 

Manager and other 

KMP(S): 

NA NA NA NA 

Number of Board 

Meetings attended 

during the year (FY 

2023-24): 

One Three Two One 

Directorships and 

Committee 

memberships held 

in other companies 

Given hereunder as (a) Given hereunder as (b) Given hereunder as (c) Given hereunder as (d) 
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a) Names of entities in which Dr. Kavitha Gudapati holds directorship and the 

Membership/Chairpersonship of Committees of the Board: 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Companies 
(Directorship) 

Membership/ Chairpersonship of 

Committees of the Board 

1. GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace 

Engineering Limited 

Member of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

2. 
GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited 

Chairperson of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

3. Parampara Family Business Institute NIL 

4. GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways 

Private Limited 

Member of Audit Committee 

Member  of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

5. 
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada 

Expressways Private Limited 

Member of Audit Committee 

Member  of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

6. GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower 

Private Limited 

NIL 

7. GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited NIL 

 

b) Names of entities in which Mr. S. Rajagopal holds directorship and the Membership / 

Chairmanship of Committees of the Board: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Companies 

(Directorship)* 
Membership/Chairmanship of Committees of the 

Board 

1. GMR Highways Limited  Member of Audit Committee 

Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

2. GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private 

Limited 
 Member of Audit Committee 

Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

3. GMR Energy Limited  Member of Audit Committee 

Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
Member of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

4. GMR Rajahmundry Energy Limited  Member of Audit Committee 

 Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Member of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

5. Career Cubicle Technologies Private 

Limited 

 NIL 

6. Wisdom Leaf Technologies Private 

Limited 

 NIL 

7. GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited  NIL 

*Foreign entities not considered 
 

c) Names of entities in which Mr. Ashis Basu holds directorship and the Membership 

/Chairmanship of Committees of the Board: 

 

S. No. Name of Companies 

(Directorship)* 

Membership / Chairmanship of Committees of 

the Board 

1.  GMR Warora Energy Limited  Member of: 
 Securities Allotment Committee; 
 Executive Committee. 

2.  GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited Member of Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee. 

3.  GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Member of : 
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Limited  Nomination and Remuneration Committee; 

Management Committee,; 
 Securities Allotment Committee. 

4.  GMR Generation Assets Limited Member of: 

 Audit Committee 
 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee; 
 Securities Allotment Committee; 
 Executive Committee 

5.  GMR Trading Energy Limited Member of: 

 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee; 
 Executive Committee 

6.  GMR Maharashtra Energy Limited - 

7.  GMR Green Energy Limited 

(Formerly GMR Green Energy 

Private Limited) 

- 

8.  GMR Smart Electricity Distribution 

Private Limited (Formerly GMR 

Mining And Energy Private Limited) 

- 

9.  GMR Kashi Smart Meters Limited - 

10.  GMR Triveni Smart Meters Limited - 

*Companies Incorporated in India only 
 

d) Names of entities in which Ms. Suman Naresh Sabnani holds directorship and the 

Membership /Chairmanship of Committees of the Board: 

 

S. No. Name of Companies 

(Directorship)* 

Membership / Chairmanship of Committees of 

the Board 

1 GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited Member of: 

 Audit Committee; 

 Stakeholder Relationship Committee; 

 Environment Social & Governance (ESG) 

Committee. 

 



 

 

GMR WARORA ENERGY LIMITED  

Registered Office: No.701/704, 7th Floor, Naman Centre, A Wing,  

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400 051 

(CIN: U40100MH2005PLC155140; T: 022-42028000;  

website: www.gmrpui.com & www.gmrgroup.in) 

 

 

BOARD’S REPORT 

To the Members,  

 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting before you the Eighteenth Annual Report of 

the Company together with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended March 

31, 2023. 

 

FINANCIAL / OPERATIONAL SUMMARY  

 

The financial status of the Company as on March 31, 2023 is as under: 

                                                                                        (Amount in Rs. million) 

Particulars 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2023 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2022 

Income 16,345.39 12,994.04 

Expenditure  16,158.85 14,764.70 

Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation 1,678.74 (682.34) 

Tax expense - (195.39) 

Profit/(Loss) After Taxation     1,678.74 (486.95) 

Total Comprehensive income for the year                                                      1,676.30 (492.08) 

 

The Company’s total income during FY 2022-23 was ~Rs.16,345 million as compared to 

~Rs.12,994 million in previous year, thereby registering an increase of ~26%. There was 

an exponential increase in the profit after tax of ~Rs.1,679 million during the FY 2022-23 

as against loss of ~Rs.485 million in previous year. 

 

PLANT PERFORMANCE 

 

The Company’s Thermal Power Plant (2 x 300 MW) at Warora, District Chandrapur, 

Maharashtra achieved a PLF of 82.2%, highest ever and with a machine availability of 

89.4% and PPA compliance above 87%. The Plant’s ~92% capacity is tied up in long term 

and medium term PPA’s and balance untied capacity is being sold in open market through 

Indian Energy Exchange (IEX). Plant has a total Fuel Supply Agreement (FSA) of 2.36 

million tons per annum comprising of 1.3 million tons with South-Eastern Coalfields Limited 

(SECL) and 1.06 Million tons with Western Coalfields Limited (WCL) respectively. 

 

Awards & Certifications: 

 

The Company has been rapidly gaining position, in terms of Plant’s safety and 

standardization processes, amongst the best performing domestic coalbased power 

stations and its performance was also recognized at various forums. Some of the 

accolades, received during the year under review are: 

 

 First Indian company to bag the India’s top-most recognition “Safety shield” from 

National Safety Council of India; 

 Safety Council Gold award – “Sarva Shresta Suraksha Puraskar” 2021 from National 

Safety Council of India for achieving longest accident free man-days in the country;  

 National award for excellence in Energy management from CII’ for fifth consecutive 

year. For third straight year emerged as National Energy Leader; and 

 “Maharashtra CSR Award-2022” for water & sanitation initiatives. 

 

http://www.gmrpui.com/


 

 

The Company has also obtained the following certifications/achievements during the FY 

2022-23:  

 “Utkristh” rating (>95% score) in 5S assessment carried by National productivity 

council; 

 Recertification Audit of IMS (ISO-9001-2015; ISO 14001-2015; ISO 45001-2018), 

Energy Management System (EnMS) (ISO 50001:2018), Water Efficiency Management 

System (WeMS) (ISO 46001:2019) without any non-conformities; 
 Completed Assessment of GHG emissions for FY 21-22 as per ISO 14064 Standard; 

and 

 Empanelled as ESCO by Bureau of Energy efficiency and achieved grade -04 rating.  

 

RESOLUTION PLAN 

 

During the year under review, the Company has successfully implemented the  

Resolution Plan (RP) in terms of “Prudential Framework for Resolution of Stressed Assets” 

issued vide RBI circular dated June 7, 2019.  

 

As per RP, the debt outstanding as on cut-off date, i.e. on April 01, 2021, was converted 

into sustainable and unsustainable debt. The reduced rate of interest of 8.5% and elongate 

the repayment schedule of sustainable debt (including existing NCDs of Rs.75 Crore) were 

granted and conversion of unsustainable debt by lenders, which forms ~25% total 

outstanding debt, into fresh securities of the Company at nominal coupon rate (wherever 

applicable) as follows: 

 55,45,31,916, 0.01% Secured Unrated Unlisted Redeemable Non-Convertible 

Debentures - Series B of Rs.10 each aggregating to Rs.554,53,19,160; 

 22,33,53,257, 0.01% Secured Unrated Unlisted Optionally Convertible Debentures 

Series B1 of Rs.10/- each aggregating Rs.223,35,32,570; 

 7,49,10,482 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each, at an issue price of Rs.4.34 per share 

aggregating to Rs.32,51,11,492. 

 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY  

 

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of business of the 

Company. 

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:  

 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting financial position of the 

Company between 31st March, 2023 and the date of Board’s Report. 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 

 

During the FY 2022-23, the authorised share capital was increased from Rs.11,000 million 

to Rs.20,000 million divided into 1600 million equity shares of Rs.10 each and 400 million 

Preference Shares of Rs.10 each.  

 

The Company has allotted 7,49,10,482 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each, at an issue price of 

Rs.4.34 per share aggregating to Rs.32,51,11,492 to lenders of the Company pursuant to 

Resolution Plan and thereby the paid-up capital increased from ~Rs.10,400 million to 

~Rs.11,150 million. 

 

The Company continues to retain its status as direct subsidiary of GMR Energy Limited 

which holds 92.07% of the paid-up share capital of the Company as on the date of this 

Board Report. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

SUBSIDIARIES/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES  

 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies of its 

own and hence the statement containing salient features of the financial statement of 

Subsidiaries/ Associate Companies/ Joint Ventures, as required to be provided in Form–

AOC 1, is not applicable. 

 

NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS 

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR  

 

Since the Company does not have Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company, this 

clause is not applicable. 

 

DIVIDEND 

 

The Board did not recommend any dividend for the year 2022-23. 

 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

 

During the year there was no transfer of fund to any reserves other than the statutorily 

required to be maintained. 

 

BOARD MEETING 

 

The Board of Directors met five times during the financial year. The intervening gap 

between two consecutive meetings was in compliance with the provisions of the Act and 

circulars issued in this regard by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, during the year. The 

details are given in the Corporate Governance section of this Report.  

 

FIXED DEPOSITS 

 

During the year under review the Company has neither invited nor accepted any fixed 

deposits from the public.  

 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

During the year under review, the Company had following 2 (Two) Independent Directors 

in terms of the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act):  

 

1. Dr. M. Ramachandran  

2. Mr. Subodh Kumar Goel. 

Both Independent Director possesses appropriate skill, experience, knowledge and criteria 

of independence and has furnished to the Company a declaration in terms of the provisions 

of Section 149(7) of the Act stating that his fulfilling the criteria of independence laid down 

in Section 149(6) of the Act. Each Independent Director is empanelled with databank 

registered with Ministry of Corporate Affairs under The Companies (Creation and 

Maintenance of Databank of Independent Directors) Rules, 2019 and the Company has 

received declaration from both the Independent Directors to that effect. 

 

ANNUAL RETURN 

 

As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Act and rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, a copy of annual return in Form MGT 7 is 

available at the Company’s webpage at www.gmrpui.com & www.gmrgroup.in. 
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DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

 

In pursuance of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors 

hereby confirm that: 

 

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and 

explanations obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of 

Section 134(3)(c) of the Act: 

 

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended  

31st March 2023, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

 

b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in Note 1 of the Notes to the Financial 

Statements have been selected and applied consistently and judgement and estimates 

have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023 and of the profit of the 

Company for the year ended on that date; 

 

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities; 

 

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

 

e) that proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company have been laid 

down and that the financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

 

f) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS: 

 

The Company has not given any loan or provided any security or guarantee to any other 

company during the year under review. Further, no investment was made by the Company 

in the securities of other companies during the year. 

 

AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

Statutory Auditors:  

 

M/s S.R Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the 

Company were appointed at the AGM held on September 27, 2019 to hold the office for a 

period of five years, until the conclusion of AGM to be held in the year 2024. Accordingly, 

they continue to be the Auditors of the Company. The Company has received confirmation 

from the Auditors, that their appointment continues to be within the prescribed limits 

under Section 141(3)(g) of the Act and they are not disqualified for the remaining tenure 

of their appointment. 

 

Auditors’ Report 

The Auditors have given their report on financial statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2023. The management response with respect to auditors’ 

comments are as follows: 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Emphasis of Matter: 

 

 With regard to Accounts receivables and unbilled revenue it was apprised to the Board 

that the Company had trade receivables and unbilled revenue (including claims) of 

Rs.7,609.77 million and Rs.1,212.47 million respectively as at March 31, 2023, 

including for various "change in law" events from its customers under the PPAs and 

petitions filed with the regulatory authorities for settlement of such claims. The 

payment from the customers against the claims is substantially pending receipt. Based 

on certain favourable interim regulatory orders with regard to its petition for ‘Tariff 

Determination’ and ‘Tariff Revision’ with its customers, the management is confident 

of a favourable outcome towards the outstanding receivables. The Company, during 

the year ended March 31, 2023 continued to account revenue amounting to Rs.934.54 

million from MSEDCL, Rs.367.42 million from TANGEDCO and Rs.250.85 million from 

GUVNL towards change in law events/ coal cost pass throughs. Regulatory claims in 

TANGEDCO includes Rs.174.95 million pertaining to disputed dues on account of 

escalation rates specified in CERC circular. As at March 31, 2023, the management 

has created Expected Credit Loss provision of Rs.95.85 million. During the year ended 

March 31, 2023, Company has received and accounted Rs.230.87 million of delayed 

payment surcharge from MSEDCL. During the year ended March 31, 2023, the 

Company has received confirmation and reconciliations from TANGEDCO confirming 

outstanding CIL claims and delayed payment surcharge as on August 31, 2022, the 

balance of CIL claims accounted in the books of the Company is higher by Rs.141.6 

million. The Company has given the accounting effect of the aforesaid confirmation 

and reconciliations in the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 

2023.  

 

Considering the terms of PPA are similar to TANGEDCO, management has accounted 

Rs.160.11 million towards CIL claims adjustments (provision of Rs.85.19 million and 

reversal of revenue Rs.74.93 million) in the Ind AS financial statements during the 

quarter ended March 31, 2023. Also, The Company has received favourable supreme 

court order with respect to operational parameters of CIL claims with MSEDCL. The 

management has represented that the CIL claims of Rs.347.65 million will be realised 

by Q1 of March 31, 2024. 

 

Management Response: Company has accounted revenue based on favorable orders 

from appropriate authority. DISCOMs has challenged the orders APTEL / Supreme 

Court. In the matter of MSEDCL operational parameters and DNH regulatory dues, 

Hon’ble Supreme Court has given favorable judgement in Company’s favor. 

 

The Company has provided for expected credit loss on a case-to-case basis, after 

evaluation. The company has accounted delayed payment surcharge either on 

acknowledgement by DISCOMs or on receipt amount. 

 

 In the matter of transmission charges recoverable from MSEDCL, the Board was 

apprised that as on December 31, 2022, the Company has raised claim of Rs.6,163.31 

million towards reimbursement of transmission charges from March 17, 2014. 

Pursuant to notification No. L-1/250/2019/CERC, the transmission charges were being 

directly billed to the respective customers (DISCOMS) by Power Grid Corporation of 

India Limited and accordingly the Company had not received transmission charges 

related invoices for the period December’2020 to March’2023. Though there was a 

change in the invoicing mechanism, the final obligation towards the transmission 

charges would be decided based on the order of the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India 

as stated above. 

 

In view of the favorable Order from APTEL, rejection of stay petition of MSEDCL by 

the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India, receipt of substantial amounts towards 

reimbursement of transmission charges and legal expert advice, the Company had 

recognized the reimbursement of transmission charges of Rs.6,163.31 million from 



 

 

March 17, 2014 to March 31, 2023 as reduction in the cost of transmission in the 

Statement of profit and loss. 

 

Management Response: The company expects favorable order from Supreme Court. 

 

 With respect to delay in payment of foreign payables as per FEMA regulations, the 

Board was apprised that as at March 31, 2023, Capital Creditors amounting to USD 

5.25 Million (excluding interest) towards import of goods and services (for capital 

purpose) were outstanding beyond permissible time period stipulated under the 

Master Circular on Import of Goods and Services and Master Circular on Export of 

Goods and Services issued by Reserve Bank of India ('the RBI'), which states that 

payments against imports of goods and services are required to be made within 

prescribed timelines from date of shipment. The dues payable to Shanghai Electric 

Corporation are outstanding for more than 3 years and hence as per the FEMA 

regulations, RBI approval is mandatory to make such payment. Further, based on the 

opinion received by the management from the Authorized Dealer, “In case of 

conversion of outstanding overdue imports into ECB, specific RBI approval (ECB 

Division) is required. The management is confident that required approvals would be 

received and penalties, if any that may be imposed on the Company would not be 

material. Accordingly, no adjustments have been made by the management in these 

Ind AS Financial statements in this regard. Adequate disclosure as regards these 

matters is made in the Ind AS Financial statements. 

 

Management Response: Management has submitted requisite documents to Bank for 

preparing application for RBI approval. Based on RBI approval, the Company will make 

payment to the foreign vendor.  

 

Material Uncertainty Over Going Concern: 

 

 The Company had accumulated losses of Rs.5,854.39 million as at March 31, 2023 

which has resulted in substantial erosion of the net worth of the Company.  There had 

been delays in repayment of dues to the lenders on account of the delay in the receipt 

of receivables from its customers, thereby resulting in lowering of credit ratings for 

the Company’s borrowings. However, the Company had successfully implemented 

Resolution Plan under Prudential Framework for Resolution of Stressed Assets, as 

prescribed by the RBI and has made profits before taxes for the year ended March 

31, 2023 and have favorable interim orders towards the aforementioned claims. 

Considering the aforesaid factors, the Company had performed going concern 

assessment and had prepared cashflow forecast which depends on the estimates and 

judgement with respect to key variables, market conditions, future economic 

conditions such as entering into Power Purchase Agreement (‘PPA’) and fully utilizing 

the capacity of 200 MW after expiry of new PPA with one of the customers in January 

2024, conclusion and timely realization of claims with Discoms currently under dispute 

for various change in law events, enhancement in the operational performance of the 

plant including ramp up in generation and availability of coal with higher gross calorific 

value at competitive rates, etc., which the Company believes reasonably reflect the 

future expectations and believes it has sufficient liquidity based on the expected cash 

to be generated from operations to meet its financial obligations as they fall due for 

the following twelve months and as per the Resolution Plan. Accordingly, the Ind AS 

financial statements of the Company continue to be prepared on a going concern basis 

which contemplates realization of current assets and settlement of current liabilities 

in an orderly manner. The updated cash flow projections for FY 2023-24 were shared 

with Auditors which will be approved by the Board. Based on the same Auditors had 

dropped the Material uncertainty relating to going concern in their audit report which 

was included in the previous periods. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Other Matters: 

 

 With regard to matters in relation to PPA with DNH which expired in June 2022, the 

Board was apprised that during the year ended March 31, 2020, DNH had invoked the 

force majeure clause under the PPA owing to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and 

denied the payment of capacity charges under the PPA. Company is of the view that 

force majeure clause is not enforceable considering clarification issued by the Ministry 

of Power (‘MoP’) on April 06, 2020 which has been communicated to the customer as 

well. The Company received a favorable order dated January 20, 2022 from CERC 

directing DNH to pay capacity charges along with late payment surcharge within 60 

days from the order. Further CERC initiated the proceedings under section 142 of the 

Electricity Act. DNH had appealed against the said proceedings before APTEL and 

APTEL directed the appellant to pay 25% of the principal amount of Rs.1,320.06 

million within a period of one week from the date of its interim order and also deposit 

the balance outstanding amount in an interest-bearing fixed deposit receipt with a 

nationalized bank within two weeks initially for a minimum period of six months with 

the provision of auto-renewal. The fixed deposit receipt shall be made over to the 

registry of CERC to be kept in the safe custody and be subject to further directions to 

be passed by the Tribunal in this matter. The aforesaid matter is pending conclusion. 

 

Claims on account of CIL and CPT disputed at various regulatory forums by DNH and 

the receipt of these claims were substantially pending receipt. Based on certain 

favorable interim regulatory orders with regard to its petition for ‘Tariff Determination’ 

and ‘Tariff Revision’ with its customers, the management is confident of a favorable 

outcome towards the outstanding receivables. The Company received a favorable 

order dated April 20, 2023 from Supreme court pertaining to certain change in law 

and carrying cost claims. The Company has filed a writ petition before the Hon’ble 

High Court of Bombay challenging the legality and validity of proposed transfer of the 

electricity distribution of DNH Power Distribution Company Limited (‘DNHPDCL’) to the 

new company as a going concern and invited bids of issued by the Administrator, 

Union Territory of Dadra and Nagar Haveli and Daman and Diu inviting bids for 

purchase of 51% shares of DNHPDC under Draft Dadra and Nagar Haveli and Daman 

and Diu Electricity (Reorganization and Reforms) Transfer Scheme, 2020. 

 

Management Response: Company has accounted revenue based on terms of PPA and 

CERC order. DISCOM has challenged CERC order in APTEL. The Company has obtained 

legal opinion in this regard from a reputed legal firm to establish legal aspects of claim 

for capacity charges. Company is confident of favorable outcome on outstanding 

receivables. 

 

 The Board was informed that during the year ended March 31, 2023, pursuant to 

sharp increase in electricity demand and insufficient supply of domestic coal to meet 

the required demand, Ministry of Power (MoP) has issued various directions to the 

power generators to import 10% of required coal for blending through Coal India 

Limited. The Company was directed to import 199,000 tonnes of coal as per one of 

the directions issued by MoP. The MoP directions also stated that the domestic coal 

allocations will be reduced if the power generators do not import the specified quantity 

of coal for blending. The MoP directions specified the coal cost pass through 

computation mechanism to recover price difference from Discoms. The Company 

issued tender to import 56,550 tonnes to Tradeserv Business Services LLP which was 

completely received and consumed as at March 31, 2023. 

 

Management has accounted a coal pass through revenue of Rs. 792.81 million towards 

56,550 tonnes consumed relating to the price difference between imported coal 

blended and linkage coal during the year ended March 31, 2023. The entire coal pass 

through is pending receipt as at March 31, 2023. During the quarter ended March 31, 

2023, the Company has received letter from GUVNL wherein GUVNL returned the coal 

cost pass through raised by the Company on the grounds that GUVNL has not given 

any consent for the utilization of costlier import coal for the supply of power under 



 

 

PPA. The Company has responded to the aforesaid letter stating that the 

supplementary invoices with respect to the cost for usage of imported coal have been 

raised as per the direction of Ministry of Power (‘MOP’) under section 11 of the 

Electricity Act, 2003 being the special dispensation accorded to Government of India 

which is beyond the provisions of the PPA. During the year ended, total outstanding 

dues from GUVNL towards CPT claims amounts to Rs.250.85 million. The Company 

has obtained external legal opinion on the said matter and based on the same, the 

Company is confident of receipt of coal cost pass through from GUVNL and has further 

represented that it would take necessary legal action for the same. 

 

Management Response: Company has procured imported coal on directions from 

Ministry of Power issued under Section 11 of the Electricity Act. The Company has 

raised claims to DISCOMs for higher coal costs. GUVNL has issued letter for returning 

invoice raised for coal pass through claim that it is not within purview of PPA to grant 

such claim. In April 2023, MOP has issued another circular clarifying that DISCOMs 

will have to pay the pass-through claims. The Company has also obtained legal opinion 

on this matter. 

 

 With regard to Resolution Plan as per RBI Circular – Resolution Framework for COVID-

19 related Stress, the Board was apprised that in the consortium meeting held on 

January 11, 2023, all the lenders had confirmed the implementation of Resolution 

Plan in their respective books of accounts. Further, management had represented that 

all the activities and documentation pertaining to implementation of Resolution plan 

had been completed. 

 

 Impairment assessment of Property plant and equipment (‘PPE’): The management 

of the Company carried out a valuation assessment of its Property, Plant and 

Equipment (‘PPE’) during the quarter ended June 30, 2022 by an external expert. The 

valuation assessment included certain key assumptions such as fully utilizing the 

capacity of 200 MW after expiry of new PPA with one of the customers in July 2023, 

conclusion and timely realisation of claims with Discoms currently under dispute for 

various change in law events, enhancement in the operational performance of the 

plant including ramp up in generation and availability of coal with higher gross calorific 

value at competitive rates, decline in interest rates, restructuring of loans as detailed 

in earlier slides etc. Based on an internal assessment and valuation carried out by an 

external expert, the management accounted for an impairment loss of Rs. 4,690.20 

million during the quarter ended June 30, 2022. Based on the valuation model 

received, wherein a rate of Rs 4.53 has been factored by the management considering 

L1 bid, if the said bid does not go through, there may be significant impact relating to 

impairment of PPE. 

 

Management Response: Impairment assessment of PPE is carried out as yearly 

process. Based on assessment, valuation model prepared where is no impairment of 

PPE. However, important assumption is rate of PPA after expiry of GUNVL PPA which 

will be re-evaluated based on actual. 

 

 The Board was informed that the Company has coal inventory (including Goods in 

Transit) amounting to Rs 78.21 million as at March 31, 2023. On a quarterly basis, 

the management conducts physical verification of coal with the involvement of an 

external surveyor, whose report is used to assess the quantity of coal as on that date. 

The management of the Company had conducted physical verification of coal on March 

28, 2023. Based on internal assessment for slow moving and non-moving inventory, 

the management has accounted for an estimated provision of Rs.90.75 million as at 

March 31, 2023. Further, the management has represented that this estimate would 

be evaluated annually to assess any obsolete inventory and account for necessary 

adjustments in its financial statements. The Company has a policy of capitalizing only 

those spares whose individual values are more than 5 lacs. 

 



 

 

Management Response: Company has carried out detailed analysis of slow-moving 

inventory based on estimates provision of Rs.4.5 Cr is made in accounts.  

 

 For the current year, the Statutory Auditors through its IT team had tested the ITGCs 

for SAP ECC application and concluded it to be ineffective subject to several control 

deficiencies.  

 

Management Response:  

The Board was informed that the Company was in transition period from change of 

service vendor and the detailed manual testing was conducted wherein no 

ineffectiveness/deficiency of control was found. 

 

Other than this, any other comments of the Auditors read with the notes to financial 

statements are self-explanatory and do not call for further explanation.  

 

No fraud has been reported by the Auditors u/s 143(12) during the FY 2022-23. 

 

Secretarial Auditors: 

 

M/s S. Behera & Co, Practicing Company Secretaries, were appointed as Secretarial 

Auditors to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2022-23. The 

Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is annexed herewith 

as Annexure-I to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any 

qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 

 

Cost Auditors:  

 

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s Narasimha Murthy & Co. Cost Accountants, to 

conduct Cost Audit for the financial year 2022-23. The Cost audit for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2022 does not contain any qualification, reservation, or adverse remark. 

The Cost Audit Report of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 was 

filed in XBRL mode on September 26, 2022.  

 

The Cost Audit for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 has also been filed within 

stipulated time. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS OUTGO: 
 

The plant has implemented ISO management system for Energy (ISO 50001) and water 

(ISO 46001). Under this system, there is dedicated policy for energy and water 

management. Energy and water management cells are constituted comprising of cross-

functional representation from various process.  

 

Some of the key steps taken on conservation of Energy, which optimizes the Auxiliary 

consumption of Plant are as below: 

 

 Energy conservation and Station heat rate improvement through capital overhauling 

of U-2 and annual overhauling of U-1.  

 Auxiliary power consumption reduction by carrying out computational fluid dynamic 

study of Boilers.  

 Energy consumption reduction of compressor air system through installation of 

Intelligent Flow Controller.  

 CIP implemented for APC reduction below 8%, which even won a prize at Group Level 

CIP Competition.  

 Compliance of PAT Cycle-II; Bureau of Energy efficiency (BEE) under the guidance of 

Ministry of power (MoP) have issued 9957 Energy saving certificates (ESCerts) to 

GWEL. 



 

 

 Unit Heat rate improvement by improving Condenser Vacuum through CT Cells (6 No’s) 

Fills replacement. 

 Installation& Commissioning of Intelligent Flow Controller & ICC for Energy 

Conservation in Compressed Air System is successfully completed. 

 Ash handling plant reliability improvement by replacement of BA Post Cooler Belt by 

taking 3 Hours daily shutdown rather than waiting for AOH/COH.  

 

(B) Technology absorption: 
 

Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption: 
 

 Operation Technology system strengthening in view of cyber security, System 

reliability and Security by taking initiatives like OT system upgradation to latest 

platform, Security Policy implementation, network switch open port blocking etc. 

 Coal Feeder controller along with Card Upgradation.  

 Upgradation of Water treatment plant and Chlorination plants SCADA systems to latest 

firmware. 

 AAQMS system upgradation and its successful integration with CAAQMS Portal with 

additional display installations.  

 Integration of all CHP IP cameras to security building through wireless modem for 24X7 

monitoring. 

 Integration of CCR, CHP & Greenwoods CCTV networks with GMR IT network. 

 “Data Lake Project” is executed at Energy Level under which DCS data is available on 

cloud server considering all cyber security points, LIVE data is available in Reports, 

and Trends form. 

 Critical work group systems used in OT applications are replaced and joined with GMR 

domain to further ensure security 

 “Apna Complex” Township related process App portal is implemented for faster 

communication. 

 Implementation process of OT monitoring (OT SOC-POC & deployment) by M/s Sectrio. 

2. In case of imported technology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the 

beginning of the financial year), following information may be furnished: - Not 

applicable 

 

(a) Details of technology imported- N.A 

(b) Year of import. N.A 

(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed. N.A 

(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons 

therefore. N.A 

 

3. Expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL 

 

(C): Foreign Exchange  

 

Foreign Exchange Earnings during the Financial Year 2022-23 is NIL. 

 

Foreign Exchange Outflow during the Financial Year 2022-23 is as follows:  

 Travelling Expenses: Nil 

 Purchase of Spares: Rs.51.19 Lakh 

Environment Health and safety: 

 
The Chief operating officer, the Environment committee, Safety committee, drive the 

EHS initiatives across the company.  

 



 

 

Environment Health Safety and Quality Policy framework: The Company has 

adopted an EHSQ policy, OH&S Policy and an Integrated Management System Policy 

(ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015 & ISO 45001:2018). The Company has a designated 

Organizational structure to oversee the effective implementation of OH&S Policy. Plant 

has EHS department and Head-EHS reports to COO-Thermal. Integrated management 

system provides overall management approach to improve systematically. A well 

defined OHSMS Manual, guides employees on safety matters. The Safety committee 

with representation from across the business functions and equal representation from 

contract workers. The committees advise on occupational health, safety hygiene 

improvements.  COO-Thermal, reviews the EHS performance on monthly basis, in detail 

along with other Head of the Departments. 

 

Safety update for the year 2022-23: 

 

 The Company achieved 100% safe man hours and this is 9th consecutive year of Zero 

“Lost Time Injury’.  

 

 No fatality, No Lost Time Injuries (LTI), No medical treatment cases, no occupational 

diseases reported during reporting period.  

 

 Employees and associate employees use online portal ‘Sarathi’ to report the safety 

concerns like unsafe act, unsafe condition, near miss incidents etc. Corrective and 

preventive action taken wherever required for near miss incidents and identified 

reported cases. Employees and contractor’s employees are advised and instructed to 

take immediate safety measures and preacautions in case of any unsafe surroundings 

or situations. Behaviour based safety observations are imbibed to reinforce the 

importance of safety. 

 

 As a part of emergency preparedness and strengthening safety system, the Onsite 

emergency team regularly reviews requirement of fire tender machines. Mock drills are 

conducted to ensure preparedness of all those connected with implementation of the 

plan.  

 

 Truck mounted Fog Cannon procured and deployed for arresting fugitive emission in 

Plant Outside road area. 

 

 Road infrastructure improvement with concreting, widening, marking, delineator and 

reflective stud’s installation has taken up during the period. It reduces fuel 

consumption, fugitive emission from roads as well as increase the road safety for all 

stakeholder. Vehicle speed monitoring guns deployed for speed monitoring and road 

safety vigilance. Monitoring also done through Contactless Alcohol Breath analyser. 

 

 Following initiatives related to transportation are taken thus reducing the scope-3 GHG 

emission  

o Modification made at railway siding for transportation of Fly ash to user locations  

o Construction of dedicated road from WCL mines to plant for coal transportation. 

o Transportation of Fly ash through Railway Rakes. 

o Carpooling by employees for travelling up-down in office 

o Using video conferencing thus reducing emissions due to travel and indirect energy 

consumption. 

 

The Company regularly organizes Environment Health & Safety Awareness Campaign 

covering workforce inside the plant and people in nearby villages, School children etc.  

 



 

 

 

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 

OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 

OPERATION IN FUTURE 

 

No Material and Significant orders passed by the regulations. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS  

  

All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the Management. 

The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining 

the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The internal auditor of the 

Company checks and verifies the internal control and monitors them in accordance with 

policy adopted by the Company. The Company continues to ensure proper and adequate 

systems and procedures commensurate with its size and nature of its business. 

 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL  

 

Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande (DIN: 07663196) and Mr. Sanjay Narayan Barde (DIN: 

03140784) have been re-appointed as Whole-time Directors with effect from November 

23, 2022 and January 01, 2023 respectively. 

 

Dr. Kavitha Gudapati (DIN: 02506004) and Mr. S. Rajagopal (DIN: 00022609), are retiring 

by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible have offered 

themselves for reappointment. 

 

During the year under review, the following officials continued holding the position(s) of 

KMP:  

 Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande as Whole-time Director of the Company. 

 Mr. Ashish Vinay Deshpande as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company.  

 Mr. Sanjay Kumar Babu as Company Secretary of the Company. 

 

Mr. Subodh Kumar Goel, Independent director has resigned w.e.f. July 28, 2023. The board 

places its sincere appreciation for his contributions during his tenure. Mrs. Suman Naresh 

Sabnani has been appointed as Additional Director (Non-Executive) in the category of 

Independent Director w.e.f. Sept. 05 2023.  The Board recommends her appointment for 

a term of five years to the shareholders for its approval in the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting. 

 

Mr. Ashis Basu, Whole-time Director of the Company term shall expire on April 14, 2023. 

The Board has approved his re-appointment as a whole-time Director for further period of 

three years and recommends the same for the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting. 

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial 

year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length 

basis and hence, did not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with the Rules framed thereunder, the particulars required to be disclosed pursuant 

to Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in prescribed Form AOC- 2, are, 

thus, not applicable to the Company. The details of transactions are provided in the 

financial statement (Please refer to Note 30 to the financial statement). 

 

VIGIL MECHANISM 

 

To maintain high level of legal, ethical and moral standards and to provide a gateway for 

employees to voice concern in a responsible and effective manner about serious 

malpractice, impropriety, abuse or wrongdoing within the organization, the Company has 



 

 

a Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism in place, applicable to the Company, its holding 

company, fellow subsidiaries and other Group Companies. This mechanism has been 

communicated to all concerned. Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism is administered 

appropriately by the Group Ombudsperson who will provide a quarterly update to BCM (IB 

& G).  

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The Company has a detailed risk management framework duly approved by the Audit 

Committee and the Board. The Company’s risk management framework is in line with the 

current best practices and effectively addresses the emerging challenges in a dynamic 

business environment. In today’s challenging and competitive environment, strategies for 

mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are 

imperative. As a matter of policy, risks are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken 

to mitigate the same. 

 

DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS' LIABILITY INSURANCE  

 

GMR Group ensures and maintains the liability insurance for its Directors and Officers of 

all its subsidiaries. The Group believes that it is appropriate to provide such cover to 

protect the directors from any innocent error arisen if any, as the Directors carry 

significant liability under criminal and civil law. 

  

All the Directors of the Company are covered by Directors’ & Officers Liability Policy taken 

by GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited, Company with the Insurance Company. 

 

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board has carried out the annual performance 

evaluation of its own performance, as well as the evaluation of the working of the Board. 

The Board evaluates the performance of all Executive, Non-executive and Independent 

Directors. All the Non-executive and Independent Directors are eminent personalities 

having wide experience in the field of business, industry and administration. Their 

presence on the Board is advantageous and fruitful in taking business decisions. The 

evaluation was based on structured questionnaire, covering various aspects of the Board’s 

functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board, Board culture, execution 

and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance. 

 

LISTING 

 

The Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company are listed on the debt segment of BSE 

Ltd. The annual listing fee for the year 2022-23 has been paid to the Exchange. 

 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board 

of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly followed by the 

Company. 

 

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR 

ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

 

There was neither any pending proceedings nor any new application made under 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 Of 2016) during the year.  

 

 

 



DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT 

THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING 

LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE 

REASONS THEREOF 

There was no one-time settlement done during the financial year 2022-23. 

EMPLOYEES’ STOCK OPTION SCHEME:  

The Company has not granted any employees’ stock options to its employees, hence,

requisite disclosures in this regard is not applicable. 

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013  

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for 

every individual working in its premises through various interventions and practices. The 

Company always endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from 

discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. GMR Group recognizes that 

sexual harassment violates fundamental rights of gender equality, right to life, liberty and 

right to work with human dignity as guaranteed by the Constitution of India. The Group 

had constituted an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) and had implemented a detailed 

policy against sexual harassment at work-place. During the year ended 31 March, 2023, 

no complaint of sexual harassment was received.  

Awareness programmes were conducted across the Company to sensitize employees to 

uphold the dignity of their colleagues at the workplace, particularly with respect to 

prevention of sexual harassment. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

A Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be 

undertaken by the Company, which has been approved by the Board at its meeting held 

on June 04, 2021.  

On the recommendation of the CSR Committee, the Board has framed a Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by the 

Company.  

The Company has identified the following focus areas towards the community service / 

CSR activities, which inter alia includes the following: 

i. Education,

ii. Health, Hygiene and Sanitation,

iii. Empowerment & Livelihoods,

iv. Community Development,

v. Environmental sustainability,

vi. Contribution towards Science and Technology,

vii. Rural development projects,

viii. Slum Area Development,

ix. Such other activities included in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013

as may be identified by CSR Committee from time to time, which are not

expressly prohibited.

The detailed CSR Policy is available on Company’s webpage at www.gmrpui.com & 

www.gmrgroup.in 

http://www.gmrpui.com/
http://www.gmrgroup.in/


 

 

 

During the year, the Company has spent Rs. 1.19 Crore on CSR activities, against the 

budgeted amount of Rs.1.10 Crore for the FY 2022-23 as per the terms of Section 135 of 

the Companies Act, 2013. The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith as 

Annexure-II. 

 

DISCLOSURE IN TERMS OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 

  

Pursuant to Clause 53 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, the Company discloses information as under: 

 

Details of Debenture Trustee as on March 31, 2023: 

Name of the Debenture 

Trustee 

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited 

Address  4th Floor, Mistri Bhawan, 122, Dinshaw Vachha Road, 

Church Gate,  Mumbai – 400 020 

Contact Person- Ms. Richa Phale 

022 4302 5500/5566 

richa.phale@sbicaptrustee.com 

The audited financial statements i.e balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, profit and loss 

account and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023, auditors’ report 

and Directors report forms part of the Annual Report. 

 

Details of the related party disclosures have been made in the notes to accounts of the 

audited financial statements. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES  

 

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is as under:  

 

i. Employed for the financial year with an average salary of Rs.1.02 crore per annum 

and above. 
Name Designati

on 
Remune
ration 
received 
(Amount 
in 
Crores)  
 

Nature 
of 
Employ
-ment 
Contra
ctual or 
Perman
ent  

Qualific
ation 
and 
 

Experie
nce (in 
years) 

Date of 
joining 

 

Ag
e 
of 
Em
plo
ye
e  
 

Particul
ars of 
last 
employ
ment  
 

Equity 
Share 
held by 
the 
employe
e in the 
Company  
 

Relative 
of any 
director 
or 
manage
r of the 
Compa
ny, if 
any. 

Mr. Sanjay 
Narayan 
Barde 

Whole-
Time 
Director 

3.18 Regular B.E.  45 
years 

02-07-2004 66 BSES 
/ 
Reliance 
Energy 

Nil N.A. 

Mr. Ashis 
Basu 

Whole-
Time 
Director 

2.83 Regular CA, 
B.Com,   

37 
years 

17-12-2001 61 Balagarh 
Power 

Nil N.A. 

Mr. Nikhil 
Dujari 

CFO - 
Operations 
Energy 

1.23 Regular CA 27 
years 

11.05.2021 49 Everest 
Industries 
Limited 

Nil N.A 

Mr. Dhananjay 
Deshpande 

Whole 
Time 
Director 

1.14 Regular B.E.  38 
years 

24-09-2012 60 Lanco 
Power 
Limited 

Nil N.A 

Mr. Devtosh 
Chaturvedi 

Head - 
Distributio
n and 
Renewable 
Business 

1.13 Regular B.E. 
(Electrical) 

29 
years 

01-04-2021 51   Nil N.A. 

mailto:richa.phale@sbicaptrustee.com


 

 

 

 

ii. Details of top ten employees in terms of remuneration 
Name Designati

on 
Remun
eration 
receive
d (Rs. 
in 
Crore)  

 

Nature of 
Employ-
ment 
Contractua
l or 
Permanent  

Qualific
ation 
 

Experie
nce (in 
years) 

Date of 
joining  
 

Age 
of 
Em
plo
yee  
 

Particulars 
of last 
employmen
t  
 

Equity 
Share 
held by 
the 
employ
ee in 

the 
Compan
y  
 

Relati
ve of 
any 
direct
or or 
mana

ger of 
the 
Comp
any, 
if 
any. 

Mr. Sanjay 
Narayan 
Barde 

Whole-
Time 
Director 

3.18 Regular B.E.   45 
years 

02-07-2004 66 BSES/Relia
nce Energy 

Nil N.A
. 

Mr. Ashis 
Basu 

Whole-
Time 
Director 

2.83 Regular CA 
B.Com 

37 
years 

17-12-2001 61 Balagarh 
Power 

Nil N.A
. 

Mr. Nikhil 
Dujari 

CFO - 
Operation
s Energy 

1.23 Regular CA 27 
years 

11.05.2021 49 Everest 
Industries 
Limited 

Nil N.A 

Mr. 
Dhananjay 
Deshpande 

Whole-
Time 
Director 

1.14 Regular B.E.   38 
years 

24-09-2012 60 Lanco 
Power 
Limited 

Nil N.A 

Mr. Devtosh 
Chaturvedi 

Head - 
Distributio
n and 
Renewabl
e Business 

1.13 Regular B.E. 
(Electric
al) 

29 
years 

01-04-2021 51   Nil N.A 

Mr. Shiven 
Verma 

Sector HR 
Head - 
Energy & 
Itnl. 
Airports 

0.75 Regular PGD 
(PM&IR
),   

27 
years 

10-04-2015 51 Aon India 
Services 
Pvt Ltd 

Nil N.A 

Mr. Vishal 
Nayer 

Head 
Finance - 
GWEL, 
GEMS, 
Hydro & 
LNG P 

0.69 Regular B.Com 26 
years 

21-02-2017 48 Avantha 
Power & 
Infrastructu
re Ltd 

Nil N.A 

Mr. 
Manmohan 
Sharma 

Head - 
Working 
Capital, 
Cash Flow 
Managem
ent 

0.68 Regular B.Com 28 
years 

05-03-2014 50 Suzlon 
Energy 
Limited 

Nil N.A 

Mr. Wan 
Ahmad Zam 
Zam Bin Wan 
Abd Wahab 

Dy. COO 0.67 Regular Graduat
e 

 01-04-2021 50   Nil N.A 

Mr. Chenna 
Kesava 
Reddy 

Biddala 

Principal 
Associate 

0.63 Regular B.E 36 
years 

02-06-2020 63 Essar 
Power 
Jharkhand 

Ltd 

Nil N.A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

iii. Employees who are employed for a part of the year and drawing remuneration of 

Rs.8.5 Lakh or more per month. 
Name Design

ation 
Remu
nerati
on 
receiv
ed 
(Rs. 

in cr)  
 

Nature 
of 
Employ-
ment 
Contract
ual or 

Perman
ent  

Qualifi
cation 
and  

Experie
nce (in 
years) 

Date of 
joining  
 

Age of 
Employ
ee  
 

Particulars 
of last 
employme
nt  
 

Equity 
Share 
held by 
the 
employe
e in the 

Compan
y  
 

Relativ
e of 
any 
directo
r or 
manag

er of 
the 
Compa
ny, if 
any. 

Mr. Mohan 
S 

Senior 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

1. The Company has always placed thrust on managing its affairs with diligence, transparency, 

responsibility and accountability. The Company runs on the broad principles of Corporate 

Governance and lays emphasis on best practices in achieving its objectives. The Company as 

a part of GMR Group continues to drive innovations in policies, practices and disclosures on 

corporate political activities and other key governance areas. 

 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

a) Composition: The Board of the Company comprises of the following Directors 

as on March 31, 2023: 

 

 

S. No. Name of the Director Position Category 

1.  Dr. Kavitha Gudapati Director Non-Executive 

2.  Dr. M Ramachandran Director Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

3.  Mr. Subodh Kumar Goel Director Non-Executive- 

Independent 

Director 

4.  Mr. S. Rajagopal Director Non-Executive 

5.  Mr. S.N. Barde Whole-time Director Executive 

6.  Mr. Ashis Basu Whole-time Director Executive 

7.  Mr. Dhananjay 

Deshpande 

Whole-time Director Executive 

 

b) Meetings of the Board: 

 

Five meetings of the Board were held on the following dates during the year ended 

on March 31, 2023: 

1. May 05, 2022  

2. June 23, 2022 

3. July 25, 2022  

4. October 22, 2022  

5. January 21, 2023 



 

 

The details of attendance at Board Meetings either in person or through video conferencing 

during the financial year 2022-23 and at the Annual General Meeting of the Company are 

detailed below: 

Name of Directors/DIN  Attendance at the 

Board Meeting(s) 

Attendance at 

last AGM 

Held Held during 

tenure 

Attended 

Dr. Kavitha Gudapati 

(DIN: 02506004) 

5 5 2 No 

Dr. M. Ramachandran 

(DIN:01573258) 

5 5 5 No 

Mr. S. K Goel 

(DIN:00492659) 

5 5 5 Yes 

Mr. Rajagopal S. 

(DIN: 00022609) 

5 5 5 No 

S. N Barde 

(DIN: 03140784) 

5 5 4 No 

Mr. Ashis Basu 

(DIN: 01872233) 

5 5 5 Yes 

Mr. Dhananjay 

Deshpande 

(DIN:07663196) 

5 5 5 No 

 

Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors 

 

The Independent Directors held a Meeting on October 21, 2022 without the attendance of 

Non-Independent Directors and members of Management. All the Independent Directors 

were present at the meeting. The following issues were discussed in detail: 
 

I) Reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole; 

II) Reviewed the performance of the Whole-time Director of the Company, taking into 

account the views of other Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors; 

III) Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 

Company Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively 

and reasonably perform their duties. 

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE CONSTITUTION 

 

a) Composition of the Committee. 
 

The current composition of the Audit Committee is as follows: 

Name Position Category 

Dr. M Ramachandran Member Non-Executive -Independent 

Mr. Subodh Kumar Goel Member Non-Executive -Independent 

Mr. Sanjay Narayan Barde Member Executive 

 

The composition of the Audit Committee meets the requirements of Section 

177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to 

the Audit Committee. All recommendations made by the Audit Committee 

during the year were accepted by the Board. 
 

b)  Meetings of the Audit Committee: 
 

Five Meetings of the Audit Committee were held on the following dates during 

the year ended on March 31, 2023: 
 

1. May 05, 2022  

2. June 23, 2022 

3. July 25, 2022  



 

 

4. October 22, 2022  

5. January 21, 2023 

The Committee reviewed the periodical financial statements and the 

observations of the Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors. Whenever the 

committee reviewed the Internal Audit Report and the financial statements, on 

invitation, the Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors attended the Committee 

Meetings and submitted their observations to the Committee. 

 

The details of attendance at Audit Committee Meetings either in person or 

through video conferencing during the financial year 2022-23: 

 

Name of Directors/DIN Attendance at the Audit Committee 

Meeting(s) 

Held  Held during 

tenure 

Attended 

Dr. M Ramachandran  5 5 5 

Mr. Subodh Kumar Goel 5 5 5 

Mr. Sanjay Narayan Barde 5 5 4 

   

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

a)  Composition of the Committee. 
 

The current composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as 

follows: 

Name Category 

Dr. M Ramachandran Non-Executive -Independent 

Mr. S.K Goel Non-Executive -Independent 

Mr. S.N. Barde Executive  

 

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meets the 

requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

b) Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

During the year ended March 31, 2023, two meetings of Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee were held on July 27, 2022 and October 22, 2022.  

The details of attendance at Nomination Remuneration Committee Meetings 

either in person or through video conferencing during the financial year 2022-

23 

Name of Directors/DIN Attendance at the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee Meeting(s) 

Held  Held 

during 

tenure 

Attended 

Dr. M Ramachandran 2 2 2 

Mr. S. K. Goel 2 2 2 

Mr. S. N. Barde 2 2 1 

  

The policy of the company on Directors appointment and remuneration 

including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 

independence of directors and other matters provided under Section 178 (3) of 

the Companies Act, 2013, as adopted by the Board, inter alia, covers the details 

of the remuneration of non-executive Directors, key managerial personnel and 

senior management employees, and their performance assessment and is 

available on the website of the Company at www.gmrgroup.in and 

http://www.gmrgroup.in/


 

 

www.gmrpui.com. There was no change in the policy during the period under 

review. 
 

There were no other pecuniary relationships or transactions of the Independent 

Directors vis-à-vis the Company. 

 

5. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

 

a)  Composition of the Committee: The current composition of the Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee is as follows: 

Name Category 

Dr. M Ramachandran Non-Executive- Independent  

Mr. S.N. Barde Executive  

Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande Executive  

 

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meets the 

requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

b)  Meetings of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: 

During the year ended March 31, 2023, meeting of Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee meeting was held on July 27, 2022 which was attended by all the 

members of the committee. 

 

6. SECURITIES ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE 

 

a)  Composition of the Committee: The current composition of the Securities Allotment 

Committee is as follows: 

Name Category 

Mr. S.N. Barde Executive  

Mr. Ashis Basu Executive  

 

b)  Meetings of the Securities Allotment Committee: 

During the year ended March 31, 2023, three Securities Allotment Committee 

meetings were held on July 21, 2022, September 16, 2022 and September 21, 

2022. All three meetings were attended by both the members of the Committee. 
 

7. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 

a) Composition of the Committee. 

The current composition of the Executive Committee is as follows: 

Name Category 

Mr. S.N. Barde Executive director 

Mr. Ashis Basu Executive director 

 

b) Meetings of the Executive Committee: During the year ended March 31, 2023, five 

meetings of Executive Committee were held following on dates and were attended 

by both the members: 
 

1. May 10, 2022 

2. July 14, 2022 

3. July 18, 2022 

4. August 24, 2022 

5. January 23, 2023 

http://www.gmrpui.com/


 

 

 

8. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 

a) Details of location and time of holding the last three AGMs: 

Year Location 
Date & 

Time 
Special Items Passed 

2019-20 New Shakti Bhawan, New Udaan 

Bhawan Complex, Opp. T-3, IGI 

Airport, New Delhi-110037 

September 

30, 2020 at 

11.00 AM 

 Approval of remuneration of the 

Cost Auditor 

 Appointment of Mr. S. Rajagopal 

as a Non-Executive Director of the 

company 

2020-21 New Shakti Bhawan, New Udaan 

Bhawan Complex, Opp. T-3, IGI 

Airport, New Delhi-110037 

September 

30, 2021 at 

11:30 AM 

 Ratification of remuneration of the 

Cost Auditor  

 Approval for appointment of Dr. 

Kavitha Gudapati as a director of the 

company (DIN: 02506004) 

 Approval for re-appointment of Dr. 

M. Ramachandran as an 

Independent Director of the 

company (DIN: 01573258) 

2021-22 New Shakti Bhawan, New Udaan 

Bhawan Complex, Opp. T-3, IGI 

Airport, New Delhi-110037 

September 

12, 2022 at 

11:00 AM 

 

 Ratification of remuneration of the 

Cost Auditor  

b) Details of location and time of holding the EGMs during the year: 

Year Location 
Date & 

Time 
Special Items Passed 

2022-23 New Shakti Bhawan, New Udaan 

Bhawan Complex, Opp. T-3, IGI 

Airport, New Delhi-110037 

June 24, 

2022 at 

12:30 PM 

 Approval for alteration of 

memorandum of association of the 

company to increase the authorized 

share capital of the company 

 Approval for issue of Optionally 

Convertible Debentures 

 Approval for issue of Non-

Convertible Debentures  

 Approval for issue of Equity Shares 

  Approval for conversion of loan to 

equity and other capital  

 

c) All special resolutions placed before the shareholders at the above meetings were 

approved.  
 

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

The Company communicates with its shareholders through its Annual Report and General 

Meetings. Information and latest updates and announcement regarding the Company and 

about the group can be accessed at Group’s web site: www.gmrpui.com & 

www.gmrgroup.in 

 

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
 

(i) Annual General Meeting  
 

Date  : September 29, 2023 

Time   : 10:30 AM 

Venue/Mode : Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) 

(ii)  Financial calendar  

http://www.gmrpui.com/
http://www.gmrgroup.in/


 

 

Year Ending  : March 31, 2023 

 

(iii)   Site location : Warora taluk, Chandrapur District, Maharashtra 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

                         

For GMR Warora Energy Limited                      For GMR Warora Energy Limited 

 

 

Mr. S.N. Barde                                                   Ashis Basu  

Whole-time Director                Whole-time Director 

DIN: 03140784                                              DIN:01872233 

 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: September 05, 2023 

 

 

  



 

 

Annexure- I 

 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

GMR Warora Energy Limited 

701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre A-Wing,  

BandraKurla Complex, Bandra,  

Mumbai -400051, Maharashtra 

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 

provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by GMR Warora Energy 

Limited (CIN: U40100MH2005PLC155140) (hereinafter called the ‘Company’). 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 

thereon. 

 

Based on our verification of the registers, records, books, papers, minute books, forms 

and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information 

provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 

conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during 

the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 complied with the 

statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-

processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 

to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2023 

according to the provisions of: 

 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

 

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 

thereunder; 

 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 

and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable) 

 

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 

 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable) 

 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 

 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable) 



 

 

 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and 

Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable) 

 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2021; 

 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 

client; 

 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable) and 

 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

2018 (Not applicable). 

 

6. The other major laws, as informed and certified by the Management of the Company, 

which are specifically applicable to the Company based on their sector/ industry are: 

 

i. Electricity Act, 2003 and the rules made thereunder 

 

ii. The Boilers Act, 1923 and the rules and regulations made thereunder. 

 

iii. Electricity Regulatory Commission Act, 1948. 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

a. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

b. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges read 

with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

 

During the period under review and as per representations and clarifications provided by 

the management, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned hereinabove.  

 

WE FURTHER REPORT THAT:  

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were no changes in 

the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review.  

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists 

for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before 

the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as 

recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the 

Board, as the case may be. 

 

Based on review of compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of 

the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, we are of the opinion that there 

are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 



 

 

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines. 

 

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has following specific events 

/ actions that having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above 

referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.: 

 

The Company has implemented Resolution Plan (RP) in terms of “Prudential Framework 

for Resolution of Stressed Assets” issued vide RBI circular dated June 7, 2019. In view of 

the RP, the Company had increased its Authorized Share Capital from Rs.1,100 Crores to 

Rs. 2,000 crores and had issued following securities by way of private placement to the 

lenders of the Company against unsustainable portion of Debt: 

 

 55,45,31,916, 0.01% Secured Unrated Unlisted Redeemable Non-Convertible 

Debentures - Series B of Rs.10 each aggregating to Rs.554,53,19,160 (Rupees Five 

Hundred Fifty-Four Crore Fifty-Three Lakh Nineteen Thousand One Hundred 

Sixty);22,33,53,257 0.01% Secured Unrated Unlisted Optionally Convertible 

Debentures Series B1 of Rs.10/- each aggregating Rs.223,35,32,570 (Rupees Two 

Hundred Twenty-Three Crore Thirty-Five Lakh Thirty-Two Thousand Five Hundred 

Seventy); 

 7,49,10,482 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10 each, at a issue price of Rs.4.34 

per share aggregating to Rs.32,51,11,492/- (Rupees Thirty-Two Crore Fifty-One 

Lakh Eleven Thousand Four Hundred Ninety-Two). 

 

For S. Behera & Co. 

Company Secretaries 

Sd/- 

Shesdev Behera 

Company Secretary in practice 

CP. No. 5980 

M. No. F-8428 

UDIN: F008428E000527672 

Date: 30/06/2023 

Place: New Delhi 

 

Note: Annexure- ‘A’ forming an integral part of this Report. 

  



 

 

Annexure-‘A’ 

To, 

The Members, 

GMR Warora Energy Limited 

701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre A-Wing,  

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra,  

Mumbai -400051, Maharashtra 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express as opinion on such secretarial records based 

on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as we considered appropriate to 

obtain reasonable assurance on the correctness and completeness of the secretarial 

records. Our verification was conducted on a test basis to ensure that all entries have 

been made as per statutory requirements; we believe that the processes and practices 

we followed for this purpose provided a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and 

books of accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation with respect to 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and of significant events during the year. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules and 

regulations, and standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination 

was limited to the verification of secretarial records on test-check basis to the extent 

applicable to the Company. 

6. The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the Company.  

 

 

For S. Behera & Co. 

Company Secretaries 

Sd/- 

Shesdev Behera 

Company Secretary in practice 

CP. No. 5980 

M. No. F-8428 

UDIN: F008428E000527672 

Date: 30/06/2023 

Place: New Delhi 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Annexure-II 

 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 22-23 

 

1. A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or 

programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the 

CSR policy and projects or programs. 

 

GMR Warora Energy Limited (the Company) forming part of GMR Group has adopted the 

CSR Policy of GMR Group. GMR Group (the Group) recognizes that its business activities 

have wide impact on the societies in which it operates and therefore an effective practice 

is required giving due consideration to the interests of its stakeholders including 

shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers, business partners, local communities and 

other organizations. 

 

The Company is driven by Group’s vision to make a difference, specifically to society by 

contributing to the economic development of the country and improving the quality of life 

of the local communities.  Towards this vision, the Group including the Company, through 

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation (GMRVF), partners with the communities around the 

businesses to drive various initiatives in the areas of education, health, hygiene, 

sanitation, empowerment, livelihood and community development. 

 

Projects / Activities / Programs proposed to be undertaken under CSR Policy  

 

As recommended by the CSR Committee of the Board and as per the approval of the Board 

of directors at their meeting held on July 25, 2022, the Company contributes or carries 

out its CSR activities or contribute funds to GMRVF for utilization broadly towards the 

following projects / activities / programs (preference shall be given to the areas in and 

around the project, Warora, Chandrapur, Maharashtra): 

 

The various projects/activities and programs proposed to be entered under CSR Policy are 

as under: 

Educational Programs  

 Supporting Govt Anganwadi: 400 children; Infrastructure; TLM and Conducting 

classes 

 Supporting Govt Schools: 950 children; Infrastructure; TLM and Conducting classes 

 Providing special Tuitions to slow learner students: 299 Students; classes 

conducted using joyful learning methods; TLM 

 Improving quality education through technological intervention: 578 Students; 

Offline classes; TLM and Computers 

 Supporting community Library and Pratibha Library: 1000 users; Books; online 

classes and reading material 

Health Hygiene & Sanitation  

 Supporting Primary Health Services through Health Clinic and Health Camps: 10 

Health Clinics; Consultation, referral, free medicines. 

 Providing Primary Health Services to Old Aged - Mobile Medicare Units: 2700 Old 

Aged; Consultation, referral and free medicines 

 Supporting Pregnant and Lactating Mothers – Nutrition Centers: 65 Women; 

Supplementary Nutrition & Health check up 

 Supporting community on maintaining sanitation and hygiene: 10 villages; 

Fogging, drainage, drinking water & ISL works 



 

 

Empowerment & Livelihoods  

 Vocational Training to the unemployed youth: 160 youths; 2 Self-employment 

courses 

 Supporting community enterprises & Post COVID: 856 HHs; 707 Family engaged 

in Income Generation activities 

 Supporting community based organization: 98 SHGs; 50% SHGs engaged in 

Cluster activity  

Community Development  

 Developing community structures: 2 structures & creating amenities 

 

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee. 

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as under: 

1. Mr. S.N Barde - Whole-time Director 

2. Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande – Whole-time Director 

3. Dr. M Ramachandran – Independent Director 

 

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved 

by the board are disclosed on the website of the company :- The company related 

information can be accesses from www.gmrpui.com & www.gmrgroup.in 

 

4. The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule 

(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if 

applicable (attach the report):- NA 

 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule (7) of 

the Companies Social Responsibility Policy Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off 

for the financial year, if any:-  

 

# 
Financial 

Year 

Amount available for set-

off 

from preceding financial 

years (in Rs) 

Amount required to be 

setoff 

for the financial year, if 

any (in Rs) 

1 20-21 0 0 

2 21-22 0 0 

3 22-23 51,26,531.00 17004136.54 

 TOTAL 0 0 

 

6. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years. 

Average net profits of the Company for last three financial years, calculated as per 

section 198 is as under:                                                                (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 

Net Profit/(Loss) 813,917,010 (701,322,021) (701,322,021) 

Average net profit (122,667,206) 

Amount to be spent (2% of average 

net profit) 

No Mandatory spending required as per the 

Companies Act, 2013 

 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): Rs.0.00 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 

previous financial years.: 0 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Rs. 51,26,531.00 

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): – Rs. 51,26,531.00 

http://www.gmrpui.com/
http://www.gmrgroup.in/


 

 

8. (a ) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year :- 

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial Year. 

(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund 

specified under Schedule VII as 

per second proviso to section 

135(5). 

Amount.  Date of 

transfer. 

Name of 

the 

Fund 

Amount. Date of 

transfer. 

195,58,463.54 0 0 0 0 0 



 

 

 

(8b.1) Detail of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:- From Unspent Account* 
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A EDUCATION            
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GM
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CSR00000
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A.2 Supporting Govt Schools Item (ii) Yes MS 
Chandrap

ur 
3 307,800 568,425 0 NO   

A.3 
Providing special Tuitions to 

slow learner students 
Item (ii) Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 392,180 557,673.62 0 NO   

A.4 

Improving quality education 

through technological 

intervention 

Item (ii) Yes MS 
Chandrap

ur 
3 366,000 485,688 0 NO   

A.5 
Supporting community 

Library and Pratibha Library 
Item (ii) Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 805,000 704,632 0 NO   

B 
HEALTH HYGIENE AND 

SANITATION 
           

B.1 

Supporting Primary Health 

Services through Health 

Clinic and Health Camps 

Item (i 

& iii) 
Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 973,460 626,391.60 0 NO   



 

 

B.2 

Providing Primary Health 

Services to Old Aged - 

Mobile Medicare Units 

Item (i 

& iii) 
Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 - - 0 NO   

B.3 

Supporting Pregnant and 

Lactating Mothers – 

Nutrition Centers 

Item ( i 

; ii & iii) 
Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 420,000 461,034.59 0 NO   

B.4 

Supporting community on 

maintaining sanitation and 

hygiene 

Item ( i 

; ii & iii) 
Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 396,000 401,865.38 0 Yes   

C 
EMPOWERMENT AND 

LIVELIHOODS 
           

C.1 
Vocational Training to the 

unemployed youth 
Item (ii) Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 1,146,600 1,480,378 0 NO   

C.2 
Supporting community 

enterprises 
Item (ii) Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 464,000 599,746 0 NO   

C.3 
Supporting community 

based organization 
Item (ii) Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 293,320 - 0 NO   

D 
COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT 
           

D.1 
Developing community 

structures 

Item 

(iv) 
Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 1,339,350 

1,219,253.

81 
0 YES   

 Program expenses      7,379,710 7,114,523 0    

 Overhead expenses      566,335 566,335 0    

 TOTAL      7,946,045 7,680,858 0    

*figures are on accrual basis (net of bills raised by implementing agency before the end of FY but paid after March 31 every year after reconciliation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(8b.2) Detail of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:- From GWEL Non Mandatory Funds 

 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
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Name of the Project. 

It
e
m

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 l
is

t 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
 S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 V
II

 

to
 t

h
e
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l 
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(Yes

/ 

No). 

Location of the 

project. 
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ro
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t 

d
u
ra

ti
o
n
. 

A
m

o
u
n
t 

a
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o
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a
te
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ro

je
c
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n
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a
k
h
s
 

R
s
.)

. 
A
m

o
u
n
t 

s
p
e
n
t 
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 t

h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
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n
a
n
c
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l 

Y
e
a
r 

(R
s
.)

. 

A
m

o
u
n
t 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 

to
 U

n
s
p
e
n
t 

C
S
R
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
s
 p

e
r 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 

1
3
5
(6

) 
(i

n
 

R
s
.)

. 

M
o
d
e
 o

f 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 –

 

D
ir
e
c
t 

(Y
e
s
/N

o
).

 

Mode of 

Implementatio

n - Through 

Implementing 

Agency 

Stat

e 

District.   

  

 Na

me 

CSR 

Registrati

on 

number. 

A EDUCATION            

A.1 Supporting Govt Anganwadi Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 3 

-  

0 NO GM

RV

F 

CSR00000

851 

A.2 Supporting Govt Schools Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 3 
1,000,000 

1,017,680.9

0 

0 NO   

A.3 Providing special Tuitions to 

slow learner students 

Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 3 
-  

0 NO   

A.4 Improving quality education 

through technological 

intervention 

Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 3 

-  

0 NO   

A.5 Supporting community 

Library and Pratibha Library 

Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 3 
-  

0 NO   

B HEALTH HYGIENE AND 

SANITATION 

     
  

    

B.1 Supporting Primary Health 

Services through Health 

Clinic and Health Camps 

Item (i 

& iii) 

Yes MS Chandrapur 3 

6,598,540 
6,948,535.0

5 

0 NO   



 

 

B.2 Providing Primary Health 

Services to Old Aged - 

Mobile Medicare Units 

Item (i 

& iii) 

Yes MS Chandrapur 3 

2,400,000 
2,269,804.0

0 

0 NO   

B.3 Supporting Pregnant and 

Lactating Mothers – 

Nutrition Centers 

Item ( i 

; ii & iii) 

Yes MS Chandrapur 3 

- - 

0 NO   

B.4 Supporting community on 

maintaining sanitation and 

hygiene 

Item ( i 

; ii & iii) 

Yes MS Chandrapur 3 

- - 

0 Yes   

C EMPOWERMENT AND 

LIVELIHOODS 

     
  

    

C.1 Vocational Training to the 

unemployed youth 

Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 3 
- - 

0 NO   

C.2 Supporting community 

enterprises 

Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 3 
- - 

0 NO   

C.3 Supporting community 

based organization 

Item (ii) Yes MS Chandrapur 3 
- - 

0 NO   

D COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT            

D.1 Developing community 

structures 

Item 

(iv) 

Yes MS Chandrapur 3 
662,000 

1,362,257.9

9 

0 YES   

 Program expenses      
10,660,5

40 

11,598,277

.94 
0    

 Overhead expenses      
377,665.

00 
279,327.60 0    

 TOTAL      
11,038,2

05 

11,877,605

.54 
0    

 

  



 

 

(8b.3) Detail of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:- From GWEL Non Mandatory Funds and 

Unspent Account both 

 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
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It
e
m

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 l
is

t 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
 S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 V
II

 

to
 t

h
e
 A

c
t.

  

Loca

l 

area 

(Yes

/ 

No). 
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1
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5
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) 
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n
 

R
s
.)

. 

M
o
d
e
 o

f 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 –

 

D
ir
e
c
t 

(Y
e
s
/N

o
).

 

Mode of 

Implementation - 

Through 

Implementing 

Agency 

Stat

e 

District.   

  

 Na

me 

CSR 

Registratio

n 

number. 

A EDUCATION            

A.1 Supporting Govt Anganwadi Item (ii) Yes MS 
Chandrap

ur 
3 476,000 9,435 0 NO 

GM

RVF 

CSR000008

51 

A.2 Supporting Govt Schools Item (ii) Yes MS 
Chandrap

ur 
3 1,307,800 1,586,105.90 0 NO   

A.3 
Providing special Tuitions to 

slow learner students 
Item (ii) Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 392,180 557,673.62 0 NO   

A.4 

Improving quality education 

through technological 

intervention 

Item (ii) Yes MS 
Chandrap

ur 
3 366,000 485,688 0 NO   

A.5 
Supporting community 

Library and Pratibha Library 
Item (ii) Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 805,000 704,632 0 NO   

B 
HEALTH HYGIENE AND 

SANITATION 
           

B.1 

Supporting Primary Health 

Services through Health 

Clinic and Health Camps 

Item (i 

& iii) 
Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 7,572,000 7,574,926.65 0 NO   



 

 

B.2 

Providing Primary Health 

Services to Old Aged - 

Mobile Medicare Units 

Item (i 

& iii) 
Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 2,400,000 2,269,804 0 NO   

B.3 

Supporting Pregnant and 

Lactating Mothers – 

Nutrition Centers 

Item ( i 

; ii & iii) 
Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 420,000 461,034.59 0 NO   

B.4 

Supporting community on 

maintaining sanitation and 

hygiene 

Item ( i 

; ii & iii) 
Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 396,000 401,865.38 0 Yes   

C 
EMPOWERMENT AND 

LIVELIHOODS 
           

C.1 
Vocational Training to the 

unemployed youth 
Item (ii) Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 1,146,600 1,480,378 0 NO   

C.2 
Supporting community 

enterprises 
Item (ii) Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 464,000 599,746 0 NO   

C.3 
Supporting community 

based organization 
Item (ii) Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 293,320 - 0 NO   

D 
COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT 
           

D.1 
Developing community 

structures 

Item 

(iv) 
Yes MS 

Chandrap

ur 
3 2,001,350 2,581,511.80 0 YES   

 Program expenses      18,040,250 18,712,800.94 0    

 Overhead expenses      944,000 845,662.60 0    

 TOTAL      18,984,250 19,558,463.54 0    

  



 

 

 

 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial 

year: N.A. 

(d) Amount spent in Administrative overheads: Rs. 845,662.60 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A. 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e):  

Rs. 18,712,800.94+ Rs. 845,662.60 = Rs. 19,558,463.54 

(g) Excess amount for Set off, if any 

S. 

No. 

Particulars Amount(in Lakh 

Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company 

as per section 135(5) for Financial Year 22-23 
0.00 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 22-23 19,558,463.54 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-

(i)] 

(Excess amount spent in FY 22-23 – Rs. 

11,877,605.54) 

Rs. 11,877,605.54 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 

programs or activities of the previous financial 

years, if any 

0.00 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding 

financial years 

[(iii)-(iv)] 

Excess amount spent in FY 21-22 – Rs. 

51,26,531.00 

Excess amount spent in FY 22-23 – Rs. 

11,877,605.54 

Total Excess spent in past two years – Rs. 

170,04,136.54 

170,04,136.54 

 

9(a)Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:  Rs. 

76,80,858.00 spend out of the Rs. 79,46,045 available UNSPENT ACCOUNT 

of 2020-21. 

 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the 

preceding financial year(s): Rs. 195,58,463.54 (Table 8.b.3) 

   

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to 

the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year, (asset-

wise details): N.A. 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such 

capital asset is registered, their address etc. 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete 

address and location of the capital asset). 

 

11. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit 

of the last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the 

reasons for not spending the amount in its Board’s report: N.A. 

 



 

 

 

12. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and 

monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the 

company:  

The implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with 

CSR objectives and Policy of the Company. 

For GMR Warora Energy Limited                      For GMR Warora Energy Limited 

 

  

Mr. S.N. Barde                                                   Dr. M. Ramachandran  

Whole-time Director                Independent Director 

DIN: 03140784                                              DIN: 01573258 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: September 05, 2023- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


















































































































































